@ 2021

Jiayi Wang

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

Photodegradable ROMP Polymers

A Thesis

Presented to

The Graduate Faculty of The University of Akron

In Partial Fulfillment

of the Requirements for the Degree

(Master's degree)

Jiayi Wang

May, 2021

Photodegradable ROMP Polymers

Jiayi Wang

Thesis

Approved:

Accepted:

Advisor Dr. Junpeng Wang

Committee Member Dr. Chunming Liu

Committee Member Dr. (name) Interim Director of SPSPE Dr. Ali Dhinojwala

Interim Dean of the College Dr. Craig Menzemer

Interim Director, Graduate School Dr. Marnie Saunders

Date

ABSTRACT

The pollution of plastic has laid a big chemical burden on our environment and has aroused serious attention to sustainable development. The development of degradable polymers is an effective strategy to address the plastic pollution caused by the accumulation of synthetic polymers post-consumer-waste (PCW) plastics.

Compared with chemically stimulated degradation, photolabile polymers can degrade into small molecules under light stimuli without treated with organic solvents and other special chemical reagents which may cause additional environmental issues. *o*-Nitrobenzyl (*o*-NB) alcohol derivatives, as a kind of efficient photolabile compounds, can photocleave to form *o*-nitrosobenzalde hyde under UV irradiation (300 nm ~ 365 nm)¹. Although a series of photolabile polymers containing *o*-NB units have been developed and investigated, most of them are prepared via step-growth by using *o*-NB containing diols as monomers. Ring-opening metathesis polymerization (ROMP) as a powerful chain-growth tool is widely used to prepare functional polymers for different applications².

Herein, we developed a new kind of o-NB containing cyclic olefin as ROMPtype monomer. The monomer can be homopolymerized or copolymerized with other commercially available cyclic olefins such as dicyclopentadiene or norbornene to form photodegradable ROMP polymers. These polymers are expected to exhibit similar mechanical and chemical stability as the original polynorbornene and polydicyclopentadiene, while they also have photodegradable

i

properties due to the introduction of the photolabile *o*-NB unit. This contribution affords a useful strategy to develop photodegradable polymers and address the environmental issue of plastic pollution.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

It's my great honor to take this opportunity to express my special thanks to a variety of people who have helped me a lot during the past two years. Without their support and encouragement, I can not finish this thesis.

First and foremost, I want to express my earnest gratitude to my advisor, Dr. Wang. I am deeply under the influence of his meticulous and thorough work style, diligent, truth-seeking and precise attitude toward scholarship and polite, sincere and considerate attitude to people in work and study. Thank him for giving me the opportunity to join this excellent group.

Secondly, I owed great appreciation to those professors in department of polymer science of University of Akron like Prof. Miyoshi who is a very nice, kindly and patient professor and gave me great encouragement and support during my two years study in UA.

I'm also indebted to my group members and friends for their cordial help, steadfast favors and academic inspiration. They spare no efforts to give me support and actual deeds when I was writing my thesis. It will be a beautiful and cherishing memory in my lifetime.

At last, I would like to dedicate my thesis to my family, whose constant encouragement and unconditional tolerance and considerate companion are the most powerful emotional anchor for me to complete my study. I also express my gratefulness to my beloved parents for their unhesitating support. I will achieve my life goals when I grow up under their thorough care.

iii

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF FIGURESVI
LIST OF TABLESVIII
CHAPTER I1
Introduction1
1.1 Green chemistry and degradable polymers1
1.2 UV-light induced depolymerizable polymers3
1.3 o-Nitrobenzyl alcohol derivatives photolabile functional groups3
1.4 Ring-opening metathesis polymerization (ROMP)6
CHAPTER II9
Experiment9
2.1 Synthesis of <i>o</i> -nitrobenzyl dioxocin monomer9
2.2 Synthesis of o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin polymer14
2.3 Degradation of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin)15
CHAPTER III
Results and discussions17
3.1 Degradation process of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin)
3.2 GPC spectrum of before and after irradiation18
3.3 UV-vis spectrum of before and after irradiation20
CHAPTER IV

Conclusion	22
CHAPTER V	23
References	23

LIST OF FIGURES

FIGURE PAGE
1-1: Photoisomerization mechanism of <i>o</i> -NB alcohol derivatives
1-2: Photolysis of different o-NB derivatives
1-3: Ring opening metathesis polymerization (ROMP)7
1-4: Mechanism of ROMP7
1-5: Example of ROMP monomers8
2-1: Synthesis routine of o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin monomer9
2-2: ¹ H NMR (300 MHz/CDCl ₃) spectrum of 2-bromo-1-(2-nitrophenyl)ethanone
2-3: ¹ H NMR (300 MHz/CDCl ₃) spectrum of 2-(2-nitrophenyl)oxirane11
2-4: ¹ H NMR (300 MHz/CDCI ₃) spectrum of 1-(2-nitrophenyl)-1,2-ethanediol
2-5: ¹ H NMR (500 MHz/CDCl ₃) spectrum of <i>o</i> -nitrobenzyl dioxocin monomer
13
2-6: Polymerization of <i>o</i> -nitrobenzyl dioxocin monomer

2-7: ¹ H NMR (500 MHz/CDCl ₃) spectrum of o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin polymer
15
2-8: Degradation of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin)16
3-1: ¹ H NMR (500 MHz/CDCl ₃) spectra of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin) under
different UV light irradiation time18
3-2: GPC trace of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin) before and after UV light
irradiation19
3-3: UV-vis spectrum of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin) before and after UV light
irradiation2

LIST OF TABLES

PAGE

TABLE

1-1:	Twelve principles of green chemistry 2
3-1:	Molecular weights and dispersity of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin) before and
	after UV light irradiation19

CHAPTER I

Introduction

1.1 Green chemistry and degradable polymers

Green chemistry is a type of chemistry through which the production of hazaradous substances is reduced or eliminated. This concept was first proposed at the early period of the 1990s, and it aims to achieve the global sustainability at the molecular level. Subsequently, Paul Anastas and John Warner futher developed the concept and outlined the twelve important principles of green chemistry (Table 1-1).³

- 1. Prevention
- 2. Atom Economy
- 3. Less Hazardous Chemical Syntheses
- 4. Designing Safer Chemicals
- 5. Safer Solvents and Auxiliaries
- 6. Design for Energy Efficiency
- 7. Use of Renewable Feedstocks
- 8. Reduce Derivatives
- 9. Catalysis
- 10. Design for Degradation
- 11. Real-time analysis for Pollution Prevention

Table 1-1: Twelve principles of green chemistry.³

Currently, the methods in the generation and disposal of synthetic polymers are largely unsustainable. With the development of industry, the pollution of the chemical industry has laid a big chemical burden on our environment. For example, plastic has been widely used in many aspects of our daily life due to its low costs, durability, good mechanical strength and convenient. But less than 10% of plastic can be recycled leading to an increasing amount of plastic waste both on land and sea.⁴ In general, there are two approaches to reduce the accumulation of this kind of synthetic polymers: recycling of existing polymers and development of new degradable polymers.⁵

Degradable polymers are a type of polymers that have cleavable functional groups on their backbone and can be broken down into monomers or low molecular weight oligermers. Based on the stimuli that are applied to trigger degradation, degradable polymers can be divided into photodegradable polymers^{6,7}, thermally degradable polymers⁸, biodegradable polymers⁹, and mechanochemical degradable polymers^{10,11}, etc. Among these degradable polymers, photodegradable polymers attract much attention because light can be a green, convenient and controllable stimulus.

2

1.2 UV-light induced depolymerizable polymers

The mechanism of photo-induced depolymerization is that when the labile bonds in the backbone of a degradable polymer absorb light energy, transition from the ground state to the excited state occurs and generates free radicals, thus leading to the breakdown of the polymer chain. Compared with polymers consist of C-C and C-H bonds, the polymers with heteroatoms like O, S, P, Cl and N, etc. in their backbones are more photolabile^{12,13}. It is due to the higher light absorption coefficients and wider wavelengths of light absorption of the heteroatoms (especially ultraviolet light).^{14,15}

In our project "Photodegradable ROMP Polymers", we use o-nitrobenzyl group as a photolabile functional group to achieve the purpose of degradation.

1.3 o-Nitrobenzyl alcohol derivatives photolabile functional groups

o-Nitrobenzyl (o-NB) oxy moiety is one of the most commonly used photolabile functional groups, and it has received extensive attention in the field of synthetic chemistry and other fields. The use of o-NB alcohol derivatives as photodegradable functional group was first proposed by Schofield and coworkers¹⁶, then this concept was widely recognized and became the most popular photodegradable groups after Woodward and co-workers utilized it¹⁷. This photocleavable unit can be used in many fields such as photodegradable hydrogels with o-NB-based cross-linkers, block copolymers contain o-NB side chain, thin film

3

patterning with o-NB side chain, o-NB for self-assembled monolayers and photocleavable bioconjugates.¹⁸

The mechanism of o-NB alcohol derivatives photoisomerization shows in Figure1-1. Upon the irradiation of the UV light, the double bond at the nitro functional group breaks to forms two radicals. One free radical takes the proton from the benzylic carbon. Then this structure will form a two double bonds resonance structure. After that the negative charged oxygen atom attached the double bond carbon to give a five-member ring. Finally, the ether group will leave to form alcohol and o-nitrosobenzaldehyde. Through this photoisomerization the o-NB alcohol derivatives can be cleaved into an o-nitrosobenzaldehyde and alcohol under 300-365 nm UV light without any other stimulus.



Figure 1-1: Photoisomerization mechanism of o-NB alcohol derivatives.

Moreover, different substituents at the benzylic position of *o*-NB have different effects on their performance. Compared with the *o*-NB parent structure **1** which the leaving group (X) can be attached to the benzylic site directly, the carbonic acid derivatives **2** can be more frequently used as the better leaving groups and more convenient synthesis¹⁹ (Figure1-2). In addition, most of polymers with *o*-NB photolabile functional group are synthesized by step-growth polymerization and few of them are through chain-growth polymerization. Therefore, we synthesized a type of *o*-NB functional group polymers via chain-growth polymerization and the polymers are easy to be controlled and synthesized.



Figure 1-2: Photolysis of different o-NB derivatives.

1.4 Ring-opening metathesis polymerization (ROMP)

Ring-opening metathesis polymerization (ROMP) is a powerful and widely applicable method for synthesizing polymer materials with unique structures and excellent functions. ROMP is a type of chain-growth polymerization that can convert cyclic olefins into linear polymers containing olefins in their main chain (Figure1-3).²⁰



Figure 1-3: Ring opening metathesis polymerization (ROMP).

Initiation



Propagation

Termination



Figure 1-4: Mechanism of ROMP.

The mechanism of ROMP is shown in Figure 1-4. Firstly, the cycloalkene monomer coordinates with the metal alkylidene complex, followed by a [2+2] cycloaddition to form the four-membered metallacyclobutane intermediate which undergoes ring opening to form a new metal alkylidene. Notably, in this process, the cycloalkene monomer undergoes ring opening and is inserted between the metal and the original alkylidene. The cycloalkene monomer would continue to be inserted into the metal alkylidene complex, as propagation proceeds and polymer is formed. The polymerization can terminated by a type of specialized reagent (such as ethyl vinyl ether) that can react with the transition metal and remove it from the end of the growing polymer chain.²

The driving force of ROMP is the relief of ring strain in cyclic olefins. Cyclic olefin monomer with higher ring strain promotes a higher yield of polymers. For example, cyclobutene, cyclopentene, cis-cyclooctene and norbornene derivatives are the most common monomers used for ROMP (Figure1-5).²¹



Figure 1-5: Example of ROMP monomers.²

Most ROMP polymers are not degradable. Recently there have been some demonstrations of degradable ROMP polymers, enabled by the corporation of a cleavable group in the cyclic olefin monomer.²² Despite the developments, there have not been examples of photodegradable ROMP polymers. We reasoned that a photodegradable ROMP system can leverage the advantages of both ROMP and photodegradation. Hence, in our project "Photodegradable ROMP Polymers", we designed a photodegradable ROMP monomer by incorporating o-NB moiety in a cyclic olefin. Successful ROMP was achieved with the designed monomer and a photodegradation study of the resulting polymer was conducted.

CHAPTER II

Experiment

2.1 Synthesis of o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin monomer

In order to obtain this type of photodegradable ROMP polymers, we aim to utilize the *o*-nitrobenzyl functional group as a part of eight-member ring so that we can get a ROMP monomer with photodegradable properties. Figure 2-1 is the synthesis routine of our monomer.



Figure 2-1: Synthesis routine of o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin monomer.

First step is the bromination of ketone. In a single-neck flask 1-(2-nitrophenyl)ethanone (5.43g, 32.8mmol) and CuBr₂ (14.12g, 63.2mmol) are added into EA/CHCl₃ (v:v = 1:1, 50ml) solvent. Then several drops of Br₂ are added to

activate the reaction. The reaction mixture is stirred overnight at 80 $^{\circ}$ C. The color of mixture changes from red to green and there are some white precipitate forms during the reaction. After reaction, the mixture is cooled to room temperture and extracted by EA for three times, washed with brine and dried over with Na₂SO₄. After working up, run a column to purfiy the crude product. After purfication, we get 2-bromo-1-(2-nitrophenyl)ethanone (Figure 2-2).



Figure 2-2: ¹H NMR (300 MHz/CDCl₃) spectrum of 2-bromo-1-(2-

nitrophenyl)ethanone.

The second step is using 2-bromo-1-(2-nitrophenyl)ethanone to get 2-(2-nitrophenyl)oxirane. Firstly, the 2-bromo-1-(2-nitrophenyl)ethanone (4.93g, 20.2mmol) is dissolved in dioxane (40ml) then NaBH₄ (2.29g, 60.6mmol) and MeOH (24ml) are added slowly into solution at 0 $^{\circ}$ C. Warm to room temperature and using TLC plate to monitor the reaction process. After 2h reaction, NaOH solution (10%) is added into system at 0 $^{\circ}$ C reacts for 0.5-1h. Then the mixture is extracted by Et₂O for three times and dried over with Na₂SO₄. After filteration, the solvent is removed by rotary evaporation and the crude product is purified by column to get 2-(2-nitrophenyl)oxirane (Figure 2-3).



Figure 2-3: ¹H NMR (300 MHz/CDCl₃) spectrum of 2-(2-

nitrophenyl)oxirane.

The third step is from 2-(2-nitrophenyl)oxirane to get 1-(2-nitrophenyl)-1,2ethanediol. In a single-neck flask with a stir bar, 2-(2-nitrophenyl)oxirane (2.41g, 14.5mmol) is added into dioxane (100ml). Then K₂CO₃ (100ml, 10 wt%) is added into the solution and the mixture is heated to 110 °C, refluxed overnight. After reacting overnight, cool to room temperature and using HCl to adjust pH value of the mixture to 5.0. Then the mixture is extracted by ether for three times and dried over with Na₂SO₄. After filteration and concentration, purifing the crude product through column. Get 0.7g pure product (yellow solid) (Figure 2-4).



Figure **2-4**: ¹H NMR (300 MHz/CDCl₃) spectrum of 1-(2-nitrophenyl)-1,2ethanediol.

The last step to synthesize our monomer is through 1-(2-nitrophenyl)-1,2ethanediol reacts with (Z)-1,4-dibromobutene to get o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin. In a double-neck flask, NaH (0.09g, 3.74mmol) and 1-(2-nitrophenyl)-1,2-ethanediol (0.171g, 0.935mmol) are dissolved in dry THF (40ml). Then 15-crown-5 (0.412g, 1.787mmol) is added and stirred for 1.5h. After stirring 1.5h, (Z)-1,4dibromobutene (0.20g, 0.935mmol) in dry THF (55ml) is added into the mixture and reacts overnight. Finishing the reaction, remove THF by rotary evaporation then run a column to purify the crude product. Get 0.0312g pure product (Figure 2-5).





Figure 2-5: ¹H NMR (500 MHz/CDCl₃) spectrum of o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin

monomer.

2.2 Synthesis of o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin polymer

After we successfully synthesize the o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin monomer, the following step is through ROMP to synthesize the o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin polymer with second-generation Grubbs catalysts. Figure 2-6 is our synthesis routine.



Figure **2-6**: Polymerization of *o*-nitrobenzyl dioxocin monomer.

o-Nitrobenzyl dioxocin monomer (26.4 mg, 0.11 mmol, 1 eq.) and 2nd Grubbs catalyst (0.29 mg, 0.34 µmol, 0.003 eq.) are dissolved in 50 µL DCM with a stir bar. The polymerization is stirred overnight. After reaction, the crude product is seperated with prep-GPC to get the pure product. Yielding green/yellow liquid then dry it under vacuum. Due to the regioselectivity of our monomer, there are three types of polymer can be formed: head-to-head, head-to-tail and tail-to tail. Figure 2-7 is the ¹H NMR spectrum of o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin polymer.



Figure 2-7: ¹H NMR (500 MHz/CDCl₃) spectrum of *o*-nitrobenzyl dioxocin polymer.

2.3 Degradation of poly(o-Nitrobenzyl dioxocin)

The polymer can be degraded under 365 nm UV light irradiation (Figure 2-8). During degradation, the nitro group will transform into nitroso group, form ketone group and get a non-toxic product with (E)-butene-1,4-diol. Poly(*o*-Nitrobenzyl dioxocin) (7 mg) is dissolved in CDCl₃ (700 mL) in a NMR tube, put it under 365 nm UV light (light intersity: 20 mW/cm²) to see its ¹H NMR spectrum under different irradiation time.



Figure 2-8: Degradation of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin).

CHAPTER III

Results and discussions

3.1 Degradation process of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin)

To proof the photodegradability of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin), the polymer is dissolved in CDCl₃ under 365 nm UV light and be irradiated for 5 min, 15 min, 30 min, 60 min and 90 min. Through ¹H NMR spectrum of different irradiation time, we can get the information that polymer has changed after UV light irradiation. The ¹H NMR spectrum of degradation shows on Figure 3-1.

We can see from Figure 3-1; 0 min is the ¹H NMR spectrum of polymer before irradiation. Begin irradiation, some new signals at following chemical shifts appear such as 4.13 ppm, 4.18 ppm, 4.25 ppm, 4.56 ppm, 5.00 ppm, 5.78 ppm, 5.89 ppm, 6.40 ppm, 5.90 ppm, 9.62 ppm and some signals disappear like 3.5 ppm, 4.0 ppm, 5.23 ppm and 5.65 ppm during the irradiation process. Also, from the degradation process, our polymer has changed after UV light irradiation. But its degradability still needs to further verify.



Figure **3-1**: ¹H NMR (500 MHz/CDCl₃) spectra of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin) under different UV light irradiation time.

3.2 GPC spectrum of before and after irradiation

Successfully changed under UV light irradiation indicate that the *o*nitrobenzyl group can be cleaved under irradiation. Then we dissolved our crude polymer (polymer without purification) and the product after irradiation in THF solvent to go through the GPC. Figure 3-2 is the GPC curve before and after UV light irradiation for poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin) and Table 3-1 is the molecular weights and dispersity change before and after irradiation.



Figure 3-2: GPC trace of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin) before and after UV

light irradiation.

	Before irradiation	After irradiation
Mn	12.6 kDa	448 Da
Mw	23.6 kDa	810 Da
PDI	1.87	1.81

Table **3-1**: Molecular weights and dispersity of poly(*o*-nitrobenzyl dioxocin) before and after UV light irradiation.

From GPC curve, the peak around 16 mins disappeared after irradiation which indicate that the polymer degraded into monomers and oligmers. The Mn of polymer before irradiation is 12.6kDa, Mw is 23.6kDa and PDI is 1.87. The Mn after irradiation is 448Da, Mw is 810Da. From Table 3-1, the Mn, Mw are significantly reduced which verified the polymer has been degraded after UV light irradiation.

3.3 UV-vis spectrum of before and after irradiation

To double verify the photodegradable properties of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin), we use UV-vis spectroscopy to check. Figure 3-3 is the UV-vis curve.



Figure **3-3**: UV-vis spectrum of poly(*o*-nitrobenzyl dioxocin) before and after UV light irradiation.

The UV-vis curve shows that a sharp peak around 260nm decreases and a broad peak around 330nm increases which also confirmed about the degradation of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin). Also, absorption at smaller wavelength suggests that 260 nm lamp could accelerate the degradation process of poly(o-nitrobenzyl dioxocin).

CHAPTER IV

Conclusion

Degradable polymers can be broken down into unharmful substances after use and can effectively reduce the pressure on our environment. We incorporate o-NB group as a part of eight-member ring to design a monomer which can be polymerized through chain-growth and have photodegradable properties that are satisfied with the principle of green chemistry.

We have also characterized this photodegradable ROMP polymer through ¹H NMR, GPC and UV-vis spectrum. In addition, photodegradation study shows the polymer can be degraded under UV irradiation.

CHAPTER V

References

- Chen, T.; Wang, H.; Chu, Y.; Boyer, C.; Liu, J.; Xu, J. Photo-Induced Depolymerisation: Recent Advances and Future Challenges. *ChemPhotoChem*, **2019**, 1059–1076.
- (2) Sutthasupa, S.; Shiotsuki, M.; Sanda, F. Recent Advances in Ring-Opening Metathesis Polymerization, and Application to Synthesis of Functional Materials. *Polymer Journal*, **2010**, 905–915.
- (3) Anastas, P.; Eghbali, N. Green Chemistry: Principles and Practice.
 Chem. Soc. Rev. 2010, 39 (1), 301–312.
- (4) MacArthur, D. E. Beyond Plastic Waste. Science, 2017,843.
- (5) Schneiderman, D. K.; Hillmyer, M. A. 50th Anniversary Perspective: There Is a Great Future in Sustainable Polymers. *Macromolecules* 2017, *50* (10), 3733–3749.
- (6) Daglen, B. C.; Tyler, D. R. Photodegradable Plastics: End-of-Life
 Design Principles. *Green Chem. Lett. Rev.* 2010, 3 (2), 69–82.
- Pasparakis, G.; Manouras, T.; Argitis, P.; Vamvakaki, M.
 Photodegradable Polymers for Biotechnological Applications.
 Macromol. Rapid Commun. 2012, 33 (3), 183–198.
- (8) Ramis, X.; Cadenato, A.; Salla, J. M.; Morancho, J. M.;
 Valle´svalle´s, A.; Contat, L.; Ribes, A. Thermal Degradation of Polypropylene/Starch-Based Materials with Enhanced Biodegradability. *Polymer Degradation and Stability*, **2004**, 483-491.

- Middleton, J. C.; Tipton, A. J. Synthetic Biodegradable Polymers as
 Orthopedic Devices. *Biomaterials*, **2000**, *21* (23), 2335–2346.
- (10) Baranwal, K. Mechanochemical Degradation of an EPDM Polymer.*J. Appl. Polym. Sci.* **1968**, *12* (6), 1459–1469.
- (11) Li, Y.; Li, J.; Guo, S.; Li, H. Mechanochemical Degradation Kinetics of High-Density Polyethylene Melt and Its Mechanism in the Presence of Ultrasonic Irradiation. *Ultrason. Sonochem.* 2005, *12* (3), 183–189.
- (12) Domínguez, I. F.; Topham, P. D.; Bussière, P. O.; Bégué, D.;
 Rivaton, A. Unravelling the Photodegradation Mechanisms of a Low
 Bandgap Polymer by Combining Experimental and Modeling
 Approaches. *J. Phys. Chem. C* **2015**, *119* (4), 2166–2176.
- (13) Han, J.; Ji, Q.; Li, H.; Li, G.; Qiu, S.; Li, H. B.; Zhang, Q.; Jin, H.; Li, Q.; Zhang, J. A Photodegradable Hexaaza-Pentacene Molecule for Selective Dispersion of Large-Diameter Semiconducting Carbon Nanotubes. *Chem. Commun.* **2016**, *5*2 (49), 7683–7686.
- (14) Han, J.; Ji, Q.; Li, H.; Li, G.; Qiu, S.; Li, H. B.; Zhang, Q.; Jin, H.; Li, Q.; Zhang, J. A Photodegradable Hexaaza-Pentacene Molecule for Selective Dispersion of Large-Diameter Semiconducting Carbon Nanotubes. *Chem. Commun.* **2016**, *5*2 (49), 7683–7686.
- (15) Domínguez, I. F.; Topham, P. D.; Bussière, P. O.; Bégué, D.;
 Rivaton, A. Unravelling the Photodegradation Mechanisms of a Low
 Bandgap Polymer by Combining Experimental and Modeling
 Approaches. J. Phys. Chem. C 2015, 119 (4), 2166–2176.

- (16) Barltrop, J. A.; Plant, P. J.; Schofield, P. Photosensitive Protective Groups. *Chem. Commun.* **1966**, No. 22, 822–823.
- (17) Patchornik, A.; Amit, B.; Woodward, R. B. Photosensitive Protecting Groups. *Journal of the American Chemical Society*, **1970**, 6333– 6335.
- (18) Zhao, H.; Sterner, E. S.; Coughlin, E. B.; Theato, P. O-Nitrobenzyl
 Alcohol Derivatives: Opportunities in Polymer and Materials Science.
 Macromolecules 2012, 45 (4), 1723–1736.
- (19) Klán, P.; Šolomek, T.; Bochet, C. G.; Blanc, A.; Givens, R.; Rubina,
 M.; Popik, V.; Kostikov, A.; Wirz, J. Photoremovable Protecting
 Groups in Chemistry and Biology: Reaction Mechanisms and
 Efficacy. *Chem. Rev.* 2013, *113* (1), 119–191.
- Bielawski, C. W.; Grubbs, R. H. Living Ring-Opening Metathesis
 Polymerization. *Progress in Polymer Science (Oxford)*, **2007**, 1–29.
- Benson, S. W.; Golden, D. M.; Haugen, G. R.; Shaw, R.;
 Cruickshank, F. R.; Rodgers, A. S.; O'neal, H. E.; Walsh, R.
 Additivity Rules for the Estimation of Thermochemical Properties. *Chem. Rev.* **1969**, *69* (3), 279–324.
- (22) Liang, Y.; Sun, H.; Cao, W.; Thompson, M. P.; Gianneschi, N. C.
 Degradable Polyphosphoramidate via Ring-Opening Metathesis
 Polymerization. ACS Macro Lett. 2020, 9, 10, 1417–1422